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REPLY TO THE A'IiTENTION OF:

June 8, 2012

The Honorable Susan L. Biro, Chief Administrative Law Judge
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Office of Administrative Law Judges

Franklin Court, Suite 350

1099 14th St. NW

Washington, DC 20005

RE: In the Matter of Carbon Injection Systems LLC, Scott Forster, and Eric Lofquist
Docket No. RCRA-05-2011-0009

Dear Chief Judge Biro:

Please find enclosed a copy of Complainant’s Second Motion for Leave to Amend Complaint
and Complainant’s Second Amended Complaint, filed on June 8, 2012, in the above-captioned
matter. Please note that this amended complaint contains the following changes:

a. new (lower) penalty figure of “$1,579,173” in paragraph 97; and
b. the following changes to Attachment A:
Count 1: line 11 (changed to “$131,061”); line 12 (changed to
“$1,027,236”
The total penalty for Count 1 and the Grand Total were affected
accordingly.

Respondents do not object to this motion so long as they are not required to file an amended
Answer.

Sincerely yours,

FEnclosure

Recycled/Recyclable o Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on 100% Recycled Paper (50% Postconsumer)



ce! Keven D. Eiber (w/ enclosure)
Lawrence W. Falbe (w/ enclosure)
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Comes now Complainant, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
(Complainant or EPA), by and through its counsel, pursuant to Rule 22.14(c) of the Consolidated
Rules of Practice Governing the Adminisirative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the
Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules or Rules), and
respectfully requests leave to amend the Complaint in the above-captioned matter to reduce the
propos.ed penalty from $1‘,791,810 to $1,579,173. Respondents do not oppose this Motion as
long as they are not required to file an amended Answer in response. In support of this Motion,
Complainant states as follows:

The Consolidated Rules, at 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(c), provide that after the filing of an
answer, a complainant must seek the court’s permission to amend the complaint. No standard is
provided in the Rules for determining whether to grant an amendment. Because the Rules are
silent on this subject, the Environmental Appeals Board and this Court have consulted Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure (FRCP) 15(a), which sets forth the standard for granting amendments in
federal district courts. In the Matter of Liphatech, Inc., Docket No. FIFRA-05-2010-0016, 2010

EPA ALJ LEXIS 27 at *5-6 (Dec. 29, 2010) (citing In the Matter of Carroll Oil Co., RCRA



(9006) Appeal No. 01-02, 2002 EPA App. LEXIS 14 at *35 (EAB, July 31, 2002)) (citation
omitted). In so doing, the Environmental Appeals Board and this Court have concluded that
“leave to amend shall be freely given in the absence of any apparent or declared reason, such as
undue delay, bad faith or dilatory motive on the movant's part, repeated failure to cure
deficiencies by previous amendment, undue prejudice, or futility of amendment.” Id. at 7-8
(citing Carroll Oil, 2002 EPA App. LEXIS 14 at *37).

To allow Complainant to amend the Complaint in this matter will not result in any
prejudice to Respondent, and it is not the result of undue delay, bad faith or dilatory motive on
the part of Complainant. Further, Complainant’s request does not follow repeated failure to cure
deficiencies by previous amendment, nor 1s amendment futile.

Complainant seeks permission to amend the Complaint to reduce the proposed penalty
from $1,791,810 to $1,579,173. This reduction of $212,637 reflects Complainant’s decision, in
light of this Court’s May 18, 2012, Order on Motions for Accelerated Decision, to forego the
recapture of Respondents’ illegal profits earned through the sale of hazardous waste.
Accordingly, Complainant seeks to drop the “Beyond BEN™ portion of the penalty calculation.

Because Complainant seeks to reduce the proposed penalty in this action, there is no
prejudice to Respondent. See In re Scranton Prods., Inc., Docket No. CAA-03-2008-0004, 2008
EPA AU LEXIS 16, at *3 (Chief ALJ, April 3, 2006). Furthermore, Complainant’s request for
leave to amend the Complaint to reduce the proposed penalty is not the product of undue delay,
bad faith, or dilatory motive.

The proposed Amended Complaint is filed with this Motion, in both clean and mark-up
forms. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(b)(1), should the Court grant this Motion,

Complainant shall serve on Respondent the Amended Complaint personally, by certified mail



with return receipt requested, or by any reliable commercial delivery service that provides

written verification of delivery.
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Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

PH (312) 886-5825

Email: garypie.catherine@epa.gov

J. Matthew Moore, Assistant Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

PH (312) 886-5932

Email: moore.matthew(@epa.gov

Jeffrey A. Cahn, Associate Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

PH (312) 886-6670

Email: cahn.jeff@epa.gov
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
In the Matter of: )
)
Carbon Injection Systems LLC; )
Scott Forster, President; ) Docket No. RCRA-05-2011-0009
Eric Lofquist, Vice President )
Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Ave )
Warren Township, OH 44483 ) Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
)
EPA ID No. OHR000127910 ) Under Section 3008(a) of the Resource
) Conservation and Recovery Act,
Respondents. ) 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)
)

Second Amended Complaint and Compliance Order

Preliminary Statement

1. This is an administrative action instituted under Section 3008(a) of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended, also known as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as
amended (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. ‘§ 6928(a).

2. The Complainant is the Director of the Land and Chemicals Division, United States
Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), Region 5.

3. U.S. EPA provided notice of commencement of this action to the State of Ohio
pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).

4.  Jurisdiction for this action is conferred upon U.S. EPA by Sections 2002(a)(1),
3006(b), and 3008 of RCRA; 42 U.S.C. §§ 6912(a)(1), 6926(b), and 6928.

5. Respondents are Carbon Injection Systems LLC, Scott Forster, and Eric Ldfquist.
Carbon Injection Systems LLC, is a limited liability company doing business in the State of
Ohio. Hereinafter the term Respondents is used both collectively and alternatively to refer to all

or any one of the three persons named above.



Statutory and Regulatory Background

6. U.S. EPA has promulgated regulations, codified at 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 through 279,
governing generators and transporters of hazardous waste and facilities that treat, store, and
dispose of hazardous waste, pursuant to Sections 3002, 3003, and 3004 of RCRA, 42 U.S8.C. §§
6922, 6923, and 6924.

7.  Pursuant to Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, the Administrator of U.S.
EPA may authorize a state to administer the RCRA hazardous waste program in lieu of the
federal program when the Administrator finds that the state program meets certain conditions.
Any violation of regulations promulgated pursuant to Subtitle C (Sections 3001-3023 of RCRA,
42 U.S.C. §8§ 6921-6939¢) or any state provision authorized pursuant to Section 3006 of RCRA,
constitutes a violation of RCRA, subject to the assessment of civil penalties and issuance of
compliance orders as provided in Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.

8.  Pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), the Administrator of
U.S. EPA granted the State of Ohio final authorization to administer a state hazardous waste
program in lieu of the federal government’s base RCRA program effective June 30, 1989. 54
Fed. Reg. 27170 (June 28, 1989). U.S. EPA has granted authorization for several changes to the
Ohio RCRA program since 1989. 56 Fed. Reg 14203 (April §, 1991); 60 Fed. Reg. 38502 (July
27,1995); 61 Fed. Reg. 54950 (October 23, 1996); 68 Fed. Reg. 3429 (January 24, 2003); 71
Fed. Reg. 3220 (January 20, 2006), and; 72 Fed. Reg. 61063 (October 29, 2007). Recently,
relevant sections of the Ohio Administrative Code were revised, effective September 10, 2010,

but U.S. EPA has not yet granted authorization for those changes to the Ohio RCRA program.



9.  Under Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), U.S. EPA may issue an
order assessing a civil penalty for any past or current violation, requiring compliance
immediately or within a specified period of time, or both.

10. The Administrator of U.S. EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day
for each violation of Subtitle C of RCRA according to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.
The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701, required U.S. EPA to adjust its penalties
for inflation on a periodic basis. Pursuant to the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment
Rule, published at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, U.S. EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $32,500 per
day for each violation of Subtitle C of RCRA that occurred after March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009 and may assess a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day for each violation of
Subtitle C of RCRA that occurred after January 12, 2009.

General Allegations

11.  Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC operated a facility loca.ted at Gate #4
Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, Ohio (the “Facility’) from May 2005 to March
2010 pursuant to the terms of a lease with WCI Steel, Inc. Equipment at the Facﬂity was leased
starting March 1, 2010 by Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC to Main Street
Commodities LLC, and sold on December 31, 2010 by Respondent Carbon Injection Systems
LLC to Main Street Commodities LLC. Main Street Commodities LLC, a limited liability
company associated with Respondents Scott Forster and Eric Lofquist, now operates the Facility.

12.  Respondent Scott Forster, President, operated the Facility from May 2005 to

March 2010.

13. Respondent Eric Lofquist, Vice President, operated the Facility from May 2005 to



March 2010.

14. Respondents were and are “persons” as defined by OAC 3745-50-10(A)(88),
40 C.F.R. § 260.10, and Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15).

15. During the relevant time period, Respondents were “owners” or “operators,” as
those terms are defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(83) and (84) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10], of a
facility located at Gate #4, Blast Furnace, Main Avenue, Warren, Ohio.

16. Respondents owned or operated the Facility from at least May 2005 to March
2010.

17. Activities conducted by Respondents at the Facility include blending used oil
streams; blending used oil with virgin fuel products; blending used oil to meet fuel
specifications; and marketing on-specification used oil fuel to a consumer.

18. On or about February 25, 2005, Respondent Carbon Injection System, LLC,
notified the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (“OEPA”) of its status as a used oil
- processor and a marketer pursuant to OAC 3745-279-51 [40 C.F.R. § 279.42].

19. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ Facility consisted of land
and strﬁctures, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land, used for treating and storing
hazardous waste.

20. Respondents’ Facility was a "facility," as that term is defined under OAC 3745-
50-10(A)39) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10].

21. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents held K022, D001, D035,
F003 and F003, discarded materials, in 18,000-20,000 gallon tanks before the material was

transferred from the Facility for treatment, storage, disposal, burning or incineration elsewhere.



22. Respondents stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise handled K022, D001,
D035, FO03 and F00S5 in “tanks™ as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(114) [40
C.F.R. § 260.10].

23. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ K022, D001, D035, FO03
and FOO05 was a “solid waste” as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(107) [40 C.F.R.
§ 261.2].

24. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ K022, D001, D035, F003
and F005 was a “hazardous waste™ as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(48) [40
C.F.R. § 261.3]. |

25, At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ holding of K022, D001,
D035, FO03 and F0O035 in tanks constituted hazardous waste “storage,” as that term is defined
under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(111) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10].

26. Respondents managed hazardous waste at the Facility after November 19, 1980.

27, On August 27, 2008, U.S. EPA conducted a Compliance Evaluatiqn Inspection
of the Facility (the inspection).

28. At all times relevant to this Complaint Respondents obtained used oils, K022,
D001, D035, FO03 and F003, and other materials which were unloaded into storage tanks for
sequencing into the Respondents’ day tank. The Respondents’ day tank fed the blast furnace at
RG Steel LLC. (formerly known as Severstal Warren, Inc., Warren Consolidated Industries, Inc.,
and as WCI Steel, Inc.), where energy was recovered from the materials sent by Respondents.

29 Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste (K022) at the Facility on or

about November 21, 2005.



30. Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste designated (D001) on or about
40 occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009.

31. Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste (D001, D035, F003 and F005)
on or about 149 occasions between November 16, 2006 and February 10, 2009.

32 On February 8, 2008, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Violation to Respondent
Carbon Injection Systems LLC, alleging certain violations of RCRA.

33 On February 8, 2008, U.S. EPA issued a RCRA Information Request to
Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

34. On March 27, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a
first response to the U.S. EPA RCRA Information Request.

35. On April 28, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a
second responée to the U.S. EPA RCRA Information Request.

36. On April 28, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC, submitted to
U.S. EPA a written response to the Notice of Violation.

37. On April 28, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a second RCRA Information Request to
Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

38. On June 15, 2010, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC, submitted a
response to the U.S. EPA second RCRA Information Request.

39. On August 31, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File Administrative
Complaint to Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

40. On September 21, 2010, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a
response to the August 31, 2010, Notice of Intent to File Administrative Complaint, and asserted

an inability to pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative



Complaint. Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA requested

and received additional information regarding the ability to pay of Respondent Carbon Injection

System LLC.
41. Respondent Carbon Injection System LLC has the ability pay a portion of the
proposed penalty.

42, On October 26, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File Administrative
Complaint to Respondent Scott Forster. Respondent Scott Forster has asserted an inability to
pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative Complaint.
Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA has requested
information regarding the alleged inability to pay of Respondent Scott Forster.

43, U.S. EPA has received some but not all of the requested information. EPA has
been unable to complete an ability to pay analysis for Respondent Scott Forster. Without further
documentation, EPA has no basis to conclude that Respondent Scott Forster can meet his burden
under the inability to pay affirmative defense.

EE S On November 9, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File
Administrative Complaint to Respondent Eric Lofquist. Respondent Eric Lofquist has asserted
an inability to pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative
Complaint. Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA has
requested information regarding the alleged inability to pay of Respondent Eric Lofquist.

45. U.S. EPA has received some but not all of the requested information. EPA has
been unable to complete an ability to pay analysis fof Respondent Eric Lofquist. Without further |
documentation, EPA has no basis to conclude that Respondent Eric Lofquist can meet his burden

under the inability to pay affirmative defense.



46. Based on the ability to pay information submitted to EPA as of the date of this
complaint, all three Respondents have the combined ability to pay the proposed penalty.

47. On February 8, 2011, U.S. EPA and all three Respondents met for a prefiling
conference.

48. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the State of Ohio had not issued a permit

to Respondents to treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste at their Facility.

Count 1: Storage and Treatment of Hazardous Waste Without a Permit or Interim Status

49, Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

50. Respondents did not apply for or obtain a permit during the time they owned or
operated the Facility.

51. Pursuant to OAC 3745-50-40(A)(1) [40 CFR § 270.10()(1)], no person shall
begin physical construction of a new hazardous waste facility without having submitted "Part A"
and "Part B" of a permit application to the director of the Ohio EPA and having received an
effective Ohio hazafdous waste facility installation and operation permit. Pursuant to 3005 (a)
and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e); Ohio Revised Code §§ 3734.02 and 3734.05
(“ORC™); and OAC § 3745-50-45; the owner and operator of a hazardous waste management
unit is prohibited from operating a hazardous waste management unit except in accordance with
a permit issued pursuant to RCRA.

52. Respondents built and operated a hazardous waste facility where storage and
treatment of hazardous waste without a permit occurred, in violation of Section 3005 of RCRA,

42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and the regulations found at OAC 3745-50-40 to 3745-50-66; 3745-54 to



3745-57; 3745-205 and 3745-256 [40 C.F.R. Parts 264 , 40 C.F.R. §§ 270.1(c) and 270.10(a)
and (d), and 270.13].

=1 Respondents’ storage and treatment of hazardous waste without a permit
violated Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and the requirements of OAC §§ 3745-50-

40 to 3745-50-66 [40 C.F.R. §§ 270.1(c) and 270.10(a) and (d), and 270.13].

Count 2: Public Meeting

54.  Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

55.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-50-39(A)(2) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)] prior to the
submittal of a "Part B" permit application for a facility, the applicant must hold at least one
meeting with the public in order to solicit questions from the community and inform the
community of proposed hazardous waste management activities. The applicant must post a sign-
in sheet or otherwise provide a voluntary opportunity for attendees to provide their names and
addresses.

56.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-50-40(A)(2)(a) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)] prior to the
submittal of a complete application for a hazardous waste facility installation and operation
permit, the applicant must hold at least one meeting in the township or mﬁnicipal corporation in
which the facility is proposed to be located, whichever is geographically closer to the proposed
location of the facility. The meeting must be open to the public and must be held to inform the
community of the proposed hazardous waste management activities and to solicit questions from
the community concerning the activities. The applicant must provide to the director evidence of

the meeting and document community questions concerning the proposed activities.



5T Respondents failed to hold a public meeting in violation of OAC §§ 3745-50-

39(A)(2), 3745-50-40(A)(2)(a) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)].

Count 3: Waste Analysis

28. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

59. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents had a Used Oil Analysis Plan. The Used Oil Analysis Plan did not contain
information regarding the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste or procedures to
determine the identity of each movement of waste managed at the facility.

60.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-13(B) [40 C.F.R. § 264.13(b)], the owner or operator
must develop and follow a written waste analysis plan which describes the procedures to be
implemented in order to comply with paragraph (A) of this rule. He must keep this plan at the
facility. At a minimum, the plan must specify: (1) the parameters for which each hazardous
waste will be analyzed and the rationale for the selection of these parameters; (2) the test
methods which will be used to test for these parameters; (3) the sampling method which will be
used to obtain a representative sample of the waste to be analyzed; (4) the frequency with which
the initial analysis of the waste will be reviewed or repeated to ensure that the analysis is
accurate and up to date; (5) for off-site facilities, the waste analyses that hazardous waste
generators have agreed to supply; and (6) The methods which will be used to meet the additional
waste analysis requirements for specific waste management methods of OAC 3745-270-07.

61. Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-13(C) [40 C.F.R. § 264.13(c)] the waste analysis
plan must also specify the procedures which will be used to inspect and, if necessary, analyze

each movement of hazardous waste received at the facility to ensure that it matches the identity

10



of the waste designated on the accompanying manifest or shipping paper. The plan must describe
the procedures which will be used to determine the identity of each movement of waste managed
at the facility.

62. Respondents did not develop and follow a sufficient written waste analysis plan
from May 2005 to March 2010, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-13(B) and (C) [40 C.F.R. §
264.13(b) and (c)].

Count 4: Personnel] Training

63. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.
64, When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents required some classroom instruction and/or or on-the-job training by facility
personnel regarding Respondents’ Used Oil Analysis Plan (in February 2006) and Contingency
Plan (in February and March 2006), but these plans did not include information regarding
teaching facility personnel to perfofm their duties in a way that ensured the facility’s compliance
with the requirements of the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment,
storage and disposal facilities.
65. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents maintained records related to classroom instruction and/or or on-the-job
training by facility personnel regarding Respondents’ Used Oil Analysis Plan (dated February
2006) and Contingency Plan (dated February and March 2006), but the records did not include
information regarding teaching facility personnel to perform their dufies in a way that ensured
the facility’s compliance with the requirements of the standards for owners and operators of

hazardous waste, treatment, storage and disposal facilities.

11



66. Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-16(A)(1) [40 CFR § 264.16(a)(1)] facility
personnel must successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training
that teaches them to perform their duties in a way that ensures the facility’s compliance with the
requirements of the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment, storage
and disposal facilities. Pursuant to OAC 3745-54-16(D) [40 CFR § 264.16(d)], the owner or
operator of the facility must maintain documents and records related to this training.

67. From May 2005 to March 2010, Respondents’ facility personnel failed to
successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training that taught them
to perform their duties in a way that ensured the facility’s compliance with the requirements of
the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment, storage and disposal
facilities, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-16(A)(1) [40 CFR § 264.16(a)(1)]. In addition,
Respondents failed to maintain documents and records related to this training, in violation of

OAC § 3745-54-16(D) [40 CFR § 264.16(d)].

Count 5: Preparedness and Prevention

68. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

69. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police, fire
departments, and emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of
hazardous waste handled at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel
would normally be working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation
routes; (2) where more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency,

agreements designating primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire

12



department and agreements with any others to provide support to the primary emergency
authority; (3) arrangements with Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response
contractors, and equipment suppliers; and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the
properties of hazardous waste handled at the facility and types of injuries or illnesses which
could result from fires, explosions, or releases at the facility.

70.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-37(A) [40 C.F.R. § 264.37(a)] Respondents were
responsible to attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police, fire departments, and
emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of hazardous waste handled
at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel would normally be
working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation routes; (2) where
more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency, agreements designating
primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire department and agreements
with any others to provide support to the primary emergency authority; (3) arrangements with
Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response contractors, and equipment suppliers;
and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the properties of hazardous waste
handled at the facility and types of injuries or illnesses which could result from fires, explosions,
or releases at the facility.

71. Respondents failed to attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police,
fire departments, and emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of
hazardous waste handled at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel
would normally be working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation
routes; (2) where more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency,

agreements designating primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire

13



department and agreements with any others to provide support to the primafy emergency
authority; (3) arrangements with Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response
contractors, and equipment suppliers; and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the
properties of hazardous waste handled at the facility and types of injﬁries or illnesses which
could result from fires, explosions, or releases at the facility, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-

37(A) [40 C.F.R. [40 C.F.R. § 264.37(a)].

Count 6: Unmanifested Waste Report

72. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.
73. Respondents accepted hazardous waste (K022) at the Facility for storage on

November 21, 2005, without an accompanying manifest and failed to prepare and submit an
unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director within fifteen days after receiving
the waste. |

74. Respondents accepted hazardous waste (D001) at the Facility for storage on
forty (40) occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009, without an accompanying
manifest and failed to prepare and submit an unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to
the director within fifteen days after receiving the waste.

7o Respondents accepted hazardous waste (D001, D035, F003 and F005) at the
Facility for storage on one hundred forty nine (149) occasions between November 16, 2006 and
February 10, 2009, without an accompanying manifest and failed to prepare and submit an
unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director within fifteen days after receiving

the waste.
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76. OAC §3745-54-76 [40 CFR § 264.76] requires that if a facility accepts for
treatment, storage, or disposal any hazardous waste from an off-site source without an
accompanying manifest, then the owner or operator must prepare and submit an unmanifested
waste report in the form of a letter to the director of the OEPAin the case of the federal
regulations, the Regional Administrator of U.S. EPA) within fifteen days after receiving the
waste,

77. Respondents violated OAC § 3745-54-76 [40 CFR § 264.76] by accepting
hazardous waste (K022) on November 21, 2005, hazardous waste (D001) at the Facility for
treatment and storage on forty (40) occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009,
and hazardous waste (D001, D035, FOO3 and FOO5) on one hundred forty nine (149) occasions
between November 16, 2006 and February 10, 2009 without an accompanying manifest and
failed to prepare and submit an unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director of
OEPA within fifteen days after receiving the waste.

Count 7: Closure

78. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

79, ‘When Respondents owned or operated the F acilitj/ from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not have a written closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to
perform partial or final closure of the facility at any point during its active life.

80.  Pursuant to OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120],
the owner and operator of a hazardous waste management unit is required to have a written
closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to perform partial or final closure of the facility at

any point during its active life.
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81. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to have a written closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to

perform partial or final closure of the facility at any point during its active life, in violation of

OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120].

Count 8: Financial Assurance for Closure

82. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

83. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not have and maintain a detailed written estimate, in current dollars of the
cost of closing hazardous waste management units.

84. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not establish financial assurance for closure of the facility in the form of a
closure trust fund, surety bond, letter of credit, closure insurance, or financial test and corporate
guarantee.

85.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-55-40 [40 C.F.R. § 264.140], the owner and/or operator
of a hazardous waste management facility is required to have and maintain a detailed written
estimate, in current dollars of the cost of closing hazardous waste management units in
accordance with the applicable provisions of OAC § 3745-55-42 [40 C.F.R. § 264.142]. In
addition, the owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management unit is required to comply
with the financial assﬁrance provisions of OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].

86.  When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to have and maintain a detailed written estimate, in current dollars of

the cost of closing hazardous waste management units, in violation of OAC 3745-55-42 [40
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C.F.R. § 264.142], and Respondents failed to comply with applicable financial assurance

requirements, in violation of OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].

Count 9: Tank System Requirements

87. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

88.  When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not meet hazardous waste tanks requirements of OAC § 3745-55-92 [40
CF.R. §264.192].

89.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-55-92 [40 C.F.R. § 264.192], the owner and/or operator
of a hazardous waste management facility is required to obtain and keep on file at the facility a
written assessment reviewed and certified by a qualified Professional Engineer attesting that the
tank system was adequately designed and that the tank system had sufficient structural strength
and compatibility with the waste(s) to be stored or treated, to ensure that it would not collapse,
rupture, or fail. In addition, this assessment should have considered, at a minimum, the
following information: (1) design standard(s) according to which tank(s) and/or the ancillary
equipment were constructed; and (2) hazardous characteristics of the waste(s) that were to be
handled; (3) existing corrosion protection measures; (4) documented age of the tank system; and
(5) results of a leak test, internal inspection, or other tank integrity examination.

90. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to obtain and keep on file at the facility a written hazardous waste tank

assessment, in violation of QAC § 3745-55-92 [40 C.F.R. § 264.192].
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Count 10: Land Disposal Requirements

91.  Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

92.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(B)(5) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(b)(5)] if a treatment
facility’s waste will be further managed at a different treatment, storage, or disposal facility, the
treatment, storage, or disposal facility sending the waste off-site must comply with the notice and
certification requirements applicable to generators.

93.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(A)(1) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(a)(1)] a generator of a
hazardous waste must determine if the waste has to be treated before it can be land disposed.
This is done by determining if the hazardous waste meets the treatment standards of OAC §§
3745-270-40, 3745-270-45, or 3745-270-49 [40 C.F.R. §§ 268.45, 26845 or 268.49].

94.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(A)(2-4) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(a)(2-4)] with the
initial shipment of waste to each treatment or storage facility, the generator must send a one-time
written notice to each treatment or storage facility receiving the waste, and place a copy in the
generator's files.

95.  Respondents failed to determine and provide land disposal notification and
certification pursuant to the land disposal requirements of OAC § 3745-270-07 [40 C.F.R. §
268.7]. |

96.  The acts or omissions referred to in the preceding paragraphs constitute violations

of RCRA and/or of the federally approved hazardous waste management program for the State of

Ohio.
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Civil Penalty

97. Complainant proposes that the Administrator assess a civil penalty of
$1,579,173 against Respéndents for the violations alleged in this Complaint, as further explained
in Attachment A, “Penalty Summary Sheets.”

98. Complainant determined the proposed civil penalty according to RCRA Section
3008, 42 U.S.C. § 6928. In assessing a civil penalty, the Administrator of U.S. EPA must
consider the seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts to comply with applicable
requirements. See Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3). Complainant has
considered the facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to U.S. EPA’s 2003
RCRA Civil Penalty Policy. A copy of the penalty policy is available upon request. This policy

provides a consistent method of applying the statutory penalty factors to this case.

Compliance Order

99. Based on the foregoing, Respondents are hereby ordered, pursuant to authority
in 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) [40 C.F.R. § 22.37(b)] to comply with the following
requirements immediately upon the effective date of this Order:

a. Respondents shall comply with all applicable closure and post-closure
requirements in OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-
120] to the extent practicable given the current owner and operator of the Facility.
b. If all applicable closure and post-closure requirements in OAC §§ 3745-55-10
through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120] are complied with by
Respondents, as directed in paragraph 94.a, above, Respondents shall comply
with all applicable financial assurance requirements for closure in OAC 3745-55-

42 [40 C.F.R. § 264.142], and OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].

19



100. Respondents shall not treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste without a

RCRA permit, except as provided for in paragraph 96 of this Order

| 101. Respondents shall achieve and maintain compliance with all required
prohibitions governing the storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste applicable to
treatment, storage or disposal facilities, codified at or incorporated by OAC § 3745-54-01 to 101,
OAC § 3745-55-10 to 99, OAC § 3745-56-20 to 56-83, OAC § 3745-57-02 to 93 and OAC §
3745-205-100 to 202 [40 C.I.R. Parts 264 and 265] by the effective date of this Order.

102. Respondents shall notify U.S. EPA in writing within 15 days of the effective
date of this Order either certifying compliance with the Order or explaining why they are not in
compliance and proposing a date to achieve compliance.

103 Respondents shall submit all reports, submissions, and notifications required by
this Order to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, Land and Chemicals
Division, RCRA Branch, Attention: Michael Beedle (LR-8]), 77 West Jackson Boulevard,
Chicago, Illinois 60604.

Rules Governing this Proceeding

The Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil
Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (the Consolidated Rules),
40 C.F.R. Part 22, govern this proceeding to assess a civil penalty. Enclosed with the Complaint
served on Respondents is a copy of the Consolidated Rules.

Filing and Service of Documents

Respondents must file with the U.S. EPA Regional Hearing Clerk the original and one
copy of each document Respondents intend as part of the record in this proceeding. The

Regional Hearing Clerk’s address is:
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Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19J)
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

Respondents must serve a copy of each document filed in this proceeding on each party
pursuant to Section 22.5 of the Consolidated Rules. Complainant has authorized Catherine
Garypie, Associate Regional Counsel to receive any Answer and subsequent legal documents
that Respondents serve in this proceeding. You may telephone Catherine Garypie at (312) 886-
5825. Her address is:

Catherine Garypie, Associate Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Blvd. (C-14J])

Chicago, IL 60604

Answer and Opportunity to Request a Hearing

If Respondents contest any material fact upon which the Complaint is based or the
appropriateness of any penalty amount, or contends that it is entitled to judgment as a matter of
law, Respondents may request a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge. To request a
hearing, Respondents must file a written Answer within 30 days of receiving this Complaint and
must include in that written Answer a request for a hearing. Any hearing will be conducted in
accordance with the Consolidated Rules.

In counting the 30-day period, the date of receipt is not counted, but Saturdays, Sundays,
and federal legal holidays are counted. If the 30-day time period expires on a Saturday, Sunday,
or federal legal holiday, the time period extends to the next business day.

To file an Answer, Respondents must file the original written Answer and one copy with

the Regional Hearing Clerk at the address specified above.
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Respondents’ written Answer must clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each of
the factual allegations in the Complaint; or must state clearly that Respondents have no
knowledge of a particular factual allegation. Where Respondents state that they have no
knowledge of a particular factual allegation, the allegation is deemed denied. Respondents’
failure to admit, deny, or explain any material factual allegation in the Complaint constitutes an
admission of the allegation.

Respondents’ Answer must also state:

a. the circumstances or arguments which Respondents allege constitute grounds of
defense;

b. the facts that Respondents dispute;
c. the basis for opposing the proposed penalty; and
d. whether Respondents request a hearing.

If Respondents do not file a written Answer within 30 calendar days after receiving this
Complaint, the Presiding Officer may issue a default order, after motion, under Section 22.17 of
the Consolidated Rules. Default by Respondents constitutes an admission of all factual
allegations in the Complaint and a waiver of the right to contest the factual allegations.
Respondents must pay any penalty assessed in a default order, without further proceedings,

30 days after the order becomes the final order of the Administrator of U.S. EPA under Section
22.27(c) of the Consolidated Rules.

Settlement Conference

Whether or not Respondents request a hearing, Respondents may request an informal
conference to discuss the facts alleged in the Complaint and to discuss settlement. To request an

informal settlement conference, Respondents may contact Michael Beedle at (312) 353-7922.
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Respondents’ request for an informal settlement conference will not extend the 30-day
period for filing a written Answer to this Complaint. Respondents may simultaneously pursue
both an informal settlement conference and the adjudicatory hearing process. Complainant
encourages all parties against whom it proposes to assess a civil penalty to pursue settlement

through an informal conference. Complainant, however, will not reduce the penalty simply

because the parties hold an informal settlement conference.

Continuing Obligation to Comply

Payment of a civil penalty will not affect Respondents’ continuing obligation to comply

with RCRA and any other applicable federal, state or local law.
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ATTACHMENT A - “Penalty Summary Sheets”
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PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET
Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LL.C
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 1
Requirement Violated: Storage and treatment of hazardous waste without a permit

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $1,027,236

Method of Calculation
L: Gravity based penalty s R —— $30.100
1.1 POtential fOT DATIIL coviiiiiiieiriiieceieesereeerereeesis s eebsbbreeeseesssrarasensanesessssssnaanesensesssnsesnnesesnns Major
" 1.2 EXENt OF deVIALION ....uviiiiiiiiiiiiirieiresiiirereeestareeseetaeeceseseeeeseessessessssnesesnneneraasseenesesassnees Major
1.3 MatrixX CELL POINT....cverriei ittt ettt ss bbb er b s nssrees 64%
PR, (611 CTS g o) 14 O S B S ST $4.600
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x (179) days) ..........c.cueu.. $823.400
L =R I 1 1 <L T T — $853.500
5. Percerd increase/decrense for good Falth.. cuavmmonmmnasmnns saviamessaessssmmmpmsssuibon 0%
6. Percent increase for willfulness/MegliZence . .....cocveiuieeieereniveinrreeerrersrrensree e senes s s sisssssnees 0%
7: Percent increase for history of noncomplianee.. .ssaswsssmssmsmssssmssesss i ssimsssssmivssvoiss 5%
8. Percent reduction for other unique factorsS.......vcvveeviiercieniecieinr e 0%
;. "Tortel Ttes 3 LTI B counsnnnnus osns oo srmsn s oo s B oo B 0 WA o A B S P T E 5%
10. Multiply lines 4 by HNE 9 ....ccviuriiiniieieiieiieiceis et ettt se e sesenene e $42.675
6 E7oey 010111 [l 2150 (= 11 ST T — $131.061
12. Total Iines:d, 10, and 11 Tor pedalty amount ...cummssos sasomsssssasssvessssmssves $1.027.236



PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET

Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LLC
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 4
Requirement Violated: Personnel Training

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $74.498

Method of Calculation
1. Gravity based Penalty .......cccoceeerereiniienere ettt $23.500
L. Potetitia]l T6T NAPHL .....ocsmrasmnresnsrsnmesnsesssssamssasns commsmnssansssnssenmsasassnpesensasnnessasns bxsgs (ARSI HEFA Major
L:2 BX1eit OF devialion oo s s i 1o s s SR Moderate
1.3 Matrine cell POt e msmssmmimavmsimssmmsss s s s R S S S S 64%
2. MUHI-AAY PENALLY c..veveverierereeeiereseaeseas e senese et esesesnssessessebebaaasesabs b asesasasn s sbebeseeeasesnsesesens $3.650
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x (14events-1) ......c.ccceeuen. $ 47.450
4, AAd Tine 1 and HNE 3.ttt es et sis et sttt e seea s sme e menae e $70.950
5, Pereent increase/deorease Tor @ond TatthL, ... .o wiii s 0%
6. Percent increase for willfulness/negligence.......cccoceveeeneunee. et 0%
7. Percent increase for history of noncompliance.......ccoveeeiincinnicccnns s 5%
8. Percent reduction for other unigue factorsiuwssmsssssumssimusssrrisamamisssysissism s 0%
9. Total lINes 5 through 8 ..o s etb e b ssaasennes 5%
16, Multiply [y 4 by Bs 9 cuesummmanmmssimeismmes i 2o I O $3.548
B BT eTeY 316 1 s VLo 2 1=y 4 1<) L1 OO RRR $0
12. Total linies 4,10, aiid 11 forpenalty armount, . .e s e mwasmimmsasarsamsmm $74.498



PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET
Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LL.C
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 8
Requirement Violated: Financial Assurance

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $441,004

Method of Calculation
1o o ity Dot DRI s ssrsmmenmsmsvissnesormmisvmmesss s sy s vos e o s s i $12.800
1.7 Potential for hatti..comsommommsmsasmomgpemoomonossmsosion S Moderate
1.2 BXENT OF AEVIATION ..c.eeie ettt s ee s eistbbee s s s e s sassbas b bbbasssesssssbbbeaseseneesrnnnnsnnenns Major
L3 M GBI DIOTIE . ronmmmammenfisnsssmanasssmnnrassssnsnsansnne b birdntssbi b AR SO n o SRR AR 64%
2. Minllielay Demilly, oo oo s W s TR TR $2.000
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x 179 days) ......cccceeeruerucns $358.000
O L L = T — $370,800
5. Percent increaée/decrease for 200d faIth.....cciieece e 0%
0. Pereent e ease Lo W s e LB TIOE  cunurmsnansssivs o s s esusshs hasis e i do o s s s 0%
7« Percent imgreaseTor histery of mencemplianct. .. wuswarmusnsimsssomommnsos s 5%
8. Percent reduction for other unique factors.........ccecuueee . S 0%
Q. Total lines S throush 8 uesvsssssmnmmus sy s s e s i 5%
10. Multiply Ines 4 by LINE D ...voeeviiiieiiieeiie st st sas s aa s sressae s $18.540
Y T sl s i T ———— $51.664
12. Total lines 4, 10, and 11 for penalty amount .........cecvrveenirrennsesiese e $441.004



Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LLC
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 10
Requirement Violated: Land Disposal Restriction Notification

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $36,435

Method of Calculation

1, Gragity DasEl POIBIEY: ..o enssssnsos s sosmesmsess o0 oamemss v i oo s S e vs (e Ty
1.1 Potetibia] Tor Do s oo s v mo s s s v s S0 v va s s s Vi
1.2 BXAent OF deVIATION oeeeiiiiecriieeiieeieseriiter e e e e eeseesie e e seee s e e aseeeesstseassaeaaee s st oneaesesseanrnnes
1.3 MAtrix CeIl POINT...uieiiieeiiierie ettt et s b s sre b e b s eas s

B, L ey TIEIBIEY . i mmnoissdioh s s S e s A A R R PSS VS

3. Line 2 multiplied by number of events of violations minus 1 (x (Zevents-1)........cc........
4, AdAd TS | G5 TAB 3. ermssmsssrnssmmsrmsrsmsmmarsssmssssssmmnsemmasnssmssmmms b S SR srears
5. Percent ingrease/decrease for good faith. .. swvmammsmsnninsssmmimnssissssssmaomsesn
6. Percent increase for willfulness/megligence.........cccovviieninniiiiiiininnneene e
7.. Petcent imerease for history of NoNSOMPHANGE. . smusmssinmsmsmsinermsimsmis s
8. Percent reduction for other unique fAactorS.....coovererieierririesres e
&, "Tortal JINBE 'S TTHEIT B, oxeneonsssrmmonmeoensssnmnssnnars 660 AR50 50 AR v S ST
10. MUItpLy TNES 4 BY TNE 9 .ovvveereeereeesreeeseeesssessssessssssssssssssesssssssesssssssssasssssssssassseees
11. Econoniic Benefit......coiveeeieieiierieestecenestessr e nn e an e esssanssanssassane s e sanasannansanns

12. Total lines 4, 10, and 11 for penalty amount ..o isssssssissssson

GRAND TOTAL ALL PENALTIES: $1,579,173
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
In the Matter of: )
)
Carbon Injection Systems LL.C; )
Secott Forster, President; ) Docket No. RCRA-05-2011-0009
Eric Lofquist, Vice President )
Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Ave )
Warren Township, OH 44483 ) Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
)
EPA ID No. OHR000127910 ) Under Section 3008(a) of the Resource
) Conservation and Recovery Act,
Respondents. ) 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)
)

Second Amended Complaint and Compliance Order

Preliminary Statement

1. This is an administrative action instituted under Section 3008(a) of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended, also known as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as
amended (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a).

2. The Complainant is the Director of the Land and Chemicals Division, United States
Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), Region 5.

3. U.S. EPA provided notice of commencement of this action to the State of Ohio
pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).

4.  Jurisdiction for this action is conferred upon U.S. EPA by Sections 2002(a)(1),
3006(b), and 3008 of RCRA; 42 U.S.C. §§ 6912(a)(1), 6926(b), and 6928.

5. Respondents are Carbon Injection Systems LLC, Scott Forster, and Eric Lofquist.

- Carbon Injection Systems LLC, is a limited liability company doing business in the State of
Ohio. Hereinafter the term Respondents is used both collectively and alternatively to refer to all

or any one of the three persons named above.



Statutory and Regulatorv Background

6. U.S. EPA has promulgated regulations, codified at 40 C.F.R. Parts 260 through 279,
governing generators and transporters of hazardous waste and facilities that treat, store, and
dispose of hazardous waste, pursuant to Sections 3002, 3003, and 3004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§
6922, 6923, and 6924.

7.  Pursuant .to Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926, the Administrator of U.S.
EPA may authorize a state to administer the RCRA hazardous waste program in lieu of the
federal program when the Administrator finds that the state program meets certain conditions.
Any violation of regulations promulgated pursuant to Subtitle C (Sections 3001-3023 of RCRA,
42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939¢) or any state provision authorized pursuant to Section 3006 of RCRA,
constitutes a violation of RCRA, subject to the assessment of civil penalties and issuance of
compliance orders as provided in Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.

8.  Pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), the Administrator of
U.S. EPA granted the State of Ohio final authorization to administer a state hazardous waste
program in lieu of the federal government’s base RCRA program effective June 30, 1989. 54
Fed. Reg. 27170 (June 28, 1989). U.S. EPA has granted authorization for several changes to the
Ohio RCRA program since 1989. 56 Fed. Reg 14203 (April 8, 1991); 60 Fed. Reg. 38502 (July
27, 1995); 61 Fed. Reg. 54950 (October 23, 1996); 68 Fed. Reg. 3429 (January 24, 2003); 71
Fed. Reg. 3220 (January 20, 2006), and; 72 Fed. Reg. 61063 (October 29, 2007). Recently,
relevant sections of the Ohio Administrative Code were revised, effective September 10, 2010,

but U.S. EPA has not yet granted authorization for those changes to the Ohio RCRA program.



9.  Under Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), U.S. EPA may 1ssue an
order assessing a civil penalty for any past or current violation, requiring compliance
immediately or within a specified period of time, or both.

10. The Administrator of U.S. EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day
for each violation of Subtitle C of RCRA according to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.
The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701, required U.S. EPA to adjust its penalties
for inflation on a periodic basis. Pursuant to the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment
Rule, published at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, U.S. EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $32,500 per
day for each violation of Subtitle C of RCRA that occurred after March 15, 2004 through
January 12, 2009 and may assess a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day for each violation of
Subtitle C of RCRA that occurred after January 12, 2009.

General Allegations

17, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC operated a facility located at Gate #4
Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, Ohio (the “Facility”) from May 2005 to March
2010 pursuant to the terms of a lease with WCI Steel, Inc. Equipment at the Facility was leased
starting March 1, 2010 by Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC to Main Street
Commodities LLC, and sold on December 31, 2010 by Respondent Carbon Injection Systems
LLC to Main Street Commodities LLC. Main Street Commodities LLC, a limited liability
company associated with Respondents Scott Forster and Eric Lofquist, now operates the Facility.

12. Respondent Scott Forster, President, operated the Facility from May 2005 to
March 2010.

13.  Respondent Eric Lofquist, Vice President, operated the Facility from May 2005 to



March 2010.

14. Respondents were and are “persons” as defined by OAC 3745-50-10(A)(88),
40 C.F.R. § 260.10, and Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15).

15, During the relevant time period, Respondents were “owners” or “operators,” as
those terms are defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(83) and (84) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10], of a
facility located at Gate #4, Blast Furnace, Main Avenue, Warren, Ohio.

16. Respondents owned or operated the Facility from at least May 2005 to March
2010.

17, Activities conducted by Respondents at the Facility include blending used oil
streams; blending used oil with virgin fuel products; blending used oil to meet fuel
specifications; and marketing on-specification used oil fuel to a consumer.

18. On or about February 25, 2005, Respondent Carbon Injection System, LLC,
notified the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (“OEPA™) of its status as a used oil
processor and a marketer pursuant to OAC 3745-279-51 [40 C.F.R. § 279.42].

19. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents” Facility consisted of land
and structures, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land, used for treating and storing
hazardous waste.

20. Respondents” Facility was a "facility," as that term is defined under OAC 3745-
50-10(A)(39) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10].

21. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents held K022, D001, D035,
F003 and F005, discarded materials, in 18,000-20,000 gallon tanks before the material was

transferred from the Facility for treatment, storage, disposal, burning or incineration elsewhere.



22, Respondents stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise handled K022, D001,
D035, F003 and FO05 in “tanks” as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(114) [40
C.F.R. §260.10].

23. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ K022, D001, D035, F003
and FOO5 was a “solid waste™ as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(107) [40 C.F.R.
§ 261.2].

24. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ K022, D001, D035, FO03
and FOO05 was a “hazardous waste” as that term is defined under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(48) [40
C.F.R. §261.3].

25. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Respondents’ holding of K022, D001,
D035, FO03 and F005 in tanks constituted hazardous waste “storage,” as that term is defined
under OAC 3745-50-10(A)(111) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10].

26. Respondents managed hazardous waste at the Facility after November 19, 1980.

27 On August 27, 2008, U.S. EPA conducted a Cémpliance Evaluation Inspection
of the Facility (the inspection).

28. At all times relevant to this Complaint Respondents obtained used oils, K022,
D001, D035, F003 and F0O05, and other materials which were unloaded into storage tanks for
sequencing into the Respondents’ day tank. The Respondents’ day tank fed the blast furnace at
RG Steel LLC. (formerly known as Severstal Warren, Inc., Warren Consolidated Industries, Inc.,
and as WCI Steel, Inc.), where energy was recovered from the materials sent by Respondents.

29. Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste (K022) at the Facility on or

about November 21, 2005.



30. Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste designated (D001) on or about
40 occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009.

31. Respondents stored and treated hazardous waste (D001, D035, FO03 and F005)
on or‘about 149 occasions between November 16, 2006 and February 10, 20009.

32. On February 8, 2008, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Violation to Respondent
Carbon Injection Systems LLC, alleging certain violations of RCRA.

33. On February 8, 2008, U.S. EPA issued a RCRA Information Request to
Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

- 34. On March 27, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a

first response to the U.S. EPA RCRA Information Request.

33, On April 28, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a
second response to the U.S. EPA RCRA Information Request.

36. On April 28, 2008, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC, submitted to
U.S. EPA a written response to the Notice of Violation.

37. On April 28,2010, U.S. EPA issued a second RCRA Information Request to
Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

38. On June 15, 2010, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC, submitted a
response to the U.S. EPA second RCRA Information Request.

39, On August 31, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File Administrative
Complaint to Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC.

40. On September 21, 2010, Respondent Carbon Injection Systems LLC submitted a
response to the August 31, 2010, Notice of Intent to File Administrative Complaint, and asserted

an inability to pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative



Complaint. Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA requested

and received additional information regarding the ability to pay of Respondent Carbon Injection

System LLC.

41. Respondent Carbon Injection System LLC has the ability pay a portion of the
proposed penalty.

42. On October 26, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File Administrative

Complaint to Respondent Scott Forster. Respondent Scott Forster has asserted an inability to
pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative Complaint.
Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA has requested
information regarding the alleged inability to pay of Respondent Scott Forster.

43, U.S. EPA has received some but not all of the requested information. EPA has
been unable to complete an ability to pay analysis for Respondeﬁt Scott Forster. Without further
documentation, EPA has no basis to conclude that Respondent Scott Forster can meet his burden
under the inability to pay affirmative defense.

44, On November 9, 2010, U.S. EPA issued a Notice of Intent to File
Administrative Complaint to Respondent Eric Lofquist. Respondent Eric Lofquist has asserted
an inability to pay the penalty proposed in U.S. EPA’s Notice of Intent to File Administrative
Complaint. Although the inability to pay defense is an affirmative defense, U.S. EPA has
requested information regarding the alleged inability to pay of Respondent Eric Lofquist.

45. U.S. EPA has received some but not all of the requested information. EPA has
been unable to complete an ability to pay analysis for Respondent Eric Lofquist. Without further
documentation, EPA has no basis to conclude that Respondent Eric Lofquist can meet his burden

under the inability to pay affirmative defense.



46. Based on the ability to pay information submitted to EPA as of the date of this
complaint, all three Respondents have the combined ability to pay the proposed penalty.

47. On February 8, 2011, U.S. EPA and all three Respondents met for a prefiling
conference.

48. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the State of Ohio had not issued a permit

to Respondents to treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste at their Facility.

Count 1: Storage and Treatment of Hazardous Waste Without a Permit or Interim Status

49. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

50. Respondents did not apply for or obtain a permit during the time they owned or
operated the Facility.

51.  Pursuant to OAC 3745-50-40(A)(1) [40 CFR § 270.10(f)(1)], no person shall
begin physical construction of a new hazardous waste facility without having submitted "Part A"
and "Part B" of a permit application to the director of the Ohio EPA and having received an
effective Ohio hazardous waste facility installation and operation permit. Pursuant to 3005 (a)
and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e); Ohio Revised Code §§ 3734.02 and 3734.05
(“ORC™); and OAC § 3745-50-45; the owner and operator of a hazardous waste management
unit is prohibited from operating a hazardous waste management unit except in accordance with
a permit issued pursuant to RCRA.

52. Respondents built and operated a hazardous waste facility where storage and
treatment of hazardous waste without a permit occurred, in violation of Section 3005 of RCRA,

42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and the regulations found at OAC 3745-50-40 to 3745-50-66; 3745-54 to



3745-57; 3745-205 and 3745-256 [40 C.F.R. Parts 264 , 40 C.F.‘-R. §§ 270.1(c) and 270.10(a)
and (d), and 270.13].

53. Respondents’ storage and treatment of hazardous waste without a permit
violated Section 3005 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and the requirements of OAC §§ 3745-50-

40 to 3745-50-66 [40 C.F.R. §§ 270.1(c) and 270.10(a) and (d), and 270.13].

Count 2: Public Meeting

54. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complainf as though
set forth in this paragraph.

55.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-50-39(A)(2) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)] prior to the
submittal of a "Part B" permit application for a facility, the applicant must hold at least one
meeting with the public in order to solicit questions from the community and inform the
community of proposed hazardous waste management activities. The applicant must post a sign-
in sheet or otherwise provide a voluntary opportunity for attendees to provide their names and
addresses.

56.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-50-40(A)(2)(a) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)] prior to the
submittal of a complete application for a hazardous waste facility installation and operation
permit, the applicant must hold at least one meeting in the township or municipal corporation in
which the facility is proposed to be located, whichever is geographically closer to the proposed
location of the facility. The meeting must be open to the public and must be held to inform the
community of the proposed hazardous waste management activities and to solicit questions from
the community concerning the activities. The applicant must provide to the director evidence of

the meeting and document community questions concerning the proposed activities.



57.  Respondents failed to hold a public meeting in violation of OAC §§ 3745-50-

39(A)(2), 3745-50-40(A)(2)(a) [40 C.F.R. § 124.31(b)].

Count 3: Waste Analysis

58. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1‘through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

59, When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents had a Used Oil Analysis Plan. The Used Oil Analysis Plan did not contain
information regarding the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste or procedures to
determine the identity of each movement of waste managed at the facility.

60.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-13(B) [40 C.F.R. § 264.13(b)], the owner or operator
must develop and follow a written waste analysis plan which describes the procedures to be
implemented in order to comply with paragraph (A) of this rule. He must keep this plan at the
~ facility. At a minimum, the plan must specify: (1) the parameters for which each hazardous
waste will be analyzed and the rationale for the selection of these parameters; (2) the test
methods which will be used to test for these parameters; (3) the sampling method which will be
used to obtain a representative sample of the waste to be analyzed; (4) the frequency with which
the initial analysis of the waste will be reviewed or repeated to ensure that the analysis is
accurate and up to date; (5) for off-site facilities, the waste analyses that hazardous waste
generators have agreed to supply; and (6) The methods which will be used to meet the additional
waste analysis requirements for specific waste management methods of OAC 3745-270-07.

61. Pursuant {0 OAC § 3745-54-13(C) [40 C.F.R. § 264.13(c)] the waste analysis
plan must also specify the procedures which will be used to inspect and, if necessary, analyze

each movement of hazardous waste received at the facility to ensure that it matches the identity
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of the waste designated on the accompanying manifest or shipping paper. The plan must describe
the procedures which will be used to determine the identity of each movement of waste managed
at the facility.

62. Respondents did not develop and follow a sufficient written waste analysis plan
from May 2005 to March 2010, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-13(B) and (C) [40 C.FR. §
264.13(b) and (¢)].

Count 4: Personnel Training

- 63. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though

set forth in this paragraph.

64. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents required some classroom instruction and/or or on-the-job training by facility
personnel regarding Respondents’ Used Oil Analysis Plan (in February 2006) and Contingency
Plan (in February and March 2006), but these plans did not include information regarding
teaching facility personnel to perform their duties in a way that ensured the facility’s compliance
with the requirements of the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment,
storage and disposal facilities.

65. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents maintained records related to classroom instruction and/or or on-the-job
training by facility personnel regarding Respondents’ Used Oil Analysis Plan (dated February
2006) and Contingency Plan (dated February and March 2006), but the records did not include
information regarding teaclﬁng facility personnel to perform their duties in a way that ensured
the facility’s compliance with the requirements of the standards for owners and operators of

hazardous waste, treatment, storage and disposal facilities.
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66. Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-16(A)(1) [40 CFR § 264.16(a)(1)] facility
personnel must successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training
that teaches them to perform their duties in a way that ensures the facility’s compliance with the
requirements of the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment, storage
and disposal facilities. Pursuant to OAC 3745-54-16(D) [40 CFR § 264.16(d)], the owner or
operator of the facility must maintain documents and records related to this fraining.

67. From May 2005 to March 2010, Respondents” facility personnel failed to
successfully complete a program of classroom instruction or on-the-job training that taught them
to perform their duties in a way that ensured the facility’s compliance with the requirements of
the standards for owners and operators of hazardous waste, treatment, storage and disposal
facilities, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-16(A)(1) [40 CFR § 264.16(a)(1)]. In addition,
Respondents failed to maintain documents and records related to this training, in violation of

OAC § 3745-54-16(D) [40 CFR § 264.16(d)].

Count 5: Preparedness and Prevention

68. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.
69. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March

2010, Respondents did not attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police, fire
departments, and emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of
hazardous waste handled at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel
would normally be working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation
routes; (2) where more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency,

agreements designating primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire
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department and agreements with any others to provide support to the primary emergency
authority; (3) arrangements with Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response
contractors, and equipment suppliers; and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the
properties of hazardous waste handled at the facility and types of injuries or illnesses which
could result from fires, explosions, or releases at the facility.

70. Pursuant to OAC § 3745-54-37(A) [40 C.F.R. § 264.37(a)] Respondents were
responsible to attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police, fire departments, and
emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of hazardous waste handled
at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel would normally be
working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation routes; (2) where
more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency, agreements designating
primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire department and agreements
with any others to provide support to the primary emergency authority; (3) arrangements with
Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response contractors, ahd equipment suppliers;
and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the properties of hazardous waste
handled at the facility and types of injuries or illnesses which could result from fires, explosions,
or releases at the facility.

71. Respondents failed to attempt to make: (1) arrangements to familiarize police,
fire departments, and emergency response teams with the layout of the facility, properties of
hazardous waste handled at the facility and associated hazards, places where facility personnel
would normally be working, entrances to and roads inside the facility, and possible evacuation
routes; (2) where more than one police and fire department may respond to an emergency,

agreements designating primary emergency authority to a specific police and a specific fire
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department and agreements with any others to provide support to the primary emergency
authority; (3) arrangements with Ohio EPA emergency response teams, emergency response
contractors, and equipment suppliers; and (4) arrangements to familiarize local hospitals with the
properties of hazardous waste handled at the facility and types of injuries or illnesses which
could result from fires, explosions, or releases at the facility, in violation of OAC § 3745-54-

37(A) [40 CER. [40 C.F.R. § 264.37(a)].

Count 6: Unmanifested Waste Report

72. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

73. Respondents accepted hazardous waste (K022) at the Facility for storage on
November 21, 2005, without an accompanying manifest and failed to prepare an(i submit an
unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director within fifteen days after receiving
the waste.

74. Respondents accepted hazardous waste (D001) at the Facility for storége on
forty (40) occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009, without an accompanying
manifest and failed to prepare and submit an unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to
the director within fifteen days after receiving the waste.

3% Respondents accepted hazardous waste (D001, D035, FO03 and F005) at the
Facility for storage on one hundred forty nine (149) occasions between November 16, 2006 and
February 10, 2009, without an accompanying manifest and failed to prepare and submit an
unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director within fifteen days after receiving

the waste.
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76. OAC §3745-54-76 [40 CFR § 264.76] requires that if a facility accepts for
treatment, storage, or disposal any hazardous waste from an off-site source without an
accompanying manifest, then the owner or operator must prepare and submit an unmanifested
waste report in the form of a letter to the director of the OEPAIn the case of the federal
regulations, the Regional Administrator of U.S. EPA) within fifteen days after receiving the
waste.

Tt Respondents violated OAC § 3745-54-76 [40 CFR § 264.76] by accepting
hazardous waste (K022) on November 21, 2005, hazardous waste (D001) at the Facility for
treatment and storage on forty (40) occasions between August 9, 2006 and February 27, 2009,
and hazardous waste (D001, D035, F003 and FO05) on one hundred forty nine (149) occasions
between November 16, 2006 and February 10, 2009 without an accompanying manifest and
failed to prepare and submit an unmanifested waste report in the form of a letter to the director of
OEPA within fifteen days after receiving the waste.

Count 7: Closure

78. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.
79.  When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March

2010, Respondents did not have a written closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to
perform partial or final closure of the facility at any point during its active life.

80.  Pursuant to OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120],
the owner and operator of a hazardous waste management unit is required to have a written
closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to perform partial or final closure of the facility at

any point during its active life.
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81. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to have a written closure plan that identifies the steps necessary to

perform partial or final closure of the facility at any point during its active life, in violation of

OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120].

Count 8: Financiél Assurance for Closure

82. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

83. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not have and maintain a detailed written estimate, in current dollars of the
cost of closing hazardous waste management units.

84. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not establish financial assurance for closure of the facility in the form of a
closure trust fund, surety bond, letter of credit, closure insurance, or financial test and corporate
guarantee.

85.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-55-40 [40 C.F.R. § 264.140], the owner and/or operator
of a hazardous waste management facility is required to have and maintain a detailed written
estimate, in current dollars of the cost of closing hazardous waste management units in
accordance with the applicable provisions of OAC § 3745-55-42 [40 C.F.R. § 264.142]. In
addition, the owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste management unit is required to comply
with the financial assurance provisions of OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].

86.  When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to have and maintain a detailed written estimate, in current dollars of

the cost of closing hazardous waste management units, in violation of OAC 3745-55-42 [40
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C.F.R. § 264.142], and Respondents failed to comply with applicable financial assurance

requirements, in violation of OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].

Count 9: Tank System Requirements

87. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

88.  When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents did not meet hazardous waste tanks requirements of OAC § 3745-55-92 [40
C.F.R. § 264.192].

89.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-55-92 [40 C.F.R. § 264.192], the owner and/or operator
of a hazardous waste management facility is required to obtain and keep on file at the facility a
written assessment reviewed and certified by a qualified Professional Engineer attesting that the
tank system was adequately designed and that the tank system had sufficient structural strength
and compatibility with the waste(s) to be stored or treated, to ensure that it would not collapse,
rupture, or fail. In addition, this assessment should have considered, at a minimum, the
following information: (1) design standard(s) aécording to which tank(s) and/or the ancillary
equipment were constructed; and (2) hazardous characteristics of the waste(s) that were to be
handled; (3) existing corrosion protection measures; (4) documented age of the tank system; and
(5) results of a leak test, internal inspection, or other tank integrity examination.

90. When Respondents owned or operated the Facility from May 2005 to March
2010, Respondents failed to obtain and keep on file at the facility a written hazardous waste tank

assessment, in violation of OAC § 3745-55-92 [40 C.F.R. § 264.192].
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Count 10: Land Disposal Reguirements

91.  Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 48 of this Complaint as though
set forth in this paragraph.

92.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(B)(5) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(b)(5)] if a treatment
facility’s waste will be further managed at a different treatment, storage, or disposal facility, the
treatment, storage, or disposal facility sending the waste off-site must comply with the notice and
certification requirements applicable to generators.

93.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(A)(1) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(a)(1)] a generator of a
hazardous waste must determine if the waste has to be treated before it can be land disposed.
This is done by determining if the hazardous waste meets the treatment standards of OAC §§
3745-270-40, 3745-270-45, or 3745-270-49 [40 C.F.R. §§ 268.45, 26845 or 268.49].

94.  Pursuant to OAC § 3745-270-07(A)(2-4) [40 C.F.R. § 268.7(a)(2-4)] with the
initial shipment of waste to each treatment or storage facility, the generator must send a one-time
written notice to each treatment or storage facility receiving the waste, and place a copy in the
generator's files.

95.  Respondents failed to determine and provide land disposal notification and
certification pursuant to the land disposal requirements of OAC § 3745-270-07 [40 C.F.R. §
268.7].

96.  The acts or omissions referred to in the preceding paragraphs constitute violations

of RCRA and/or of the federally approved hazardous waste management program for the State of

Ohio.
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Civil Penal

97. Complainant proposes that the Administrator assess a civil penalty of
$1,791579.-810.173 against Respondents for the violations alleged in this Complaint, as further
explained in Attachment A, “Penalty Summary Sheets.”

98. Complainant determined the proposed civil penalty according to RCRA Section
3008, 42 U.S.C. § 6928. In assessing a civil penalty, the Administrator of U.S. EPA must
consider the seriousness of the violation and_ any good faith efforts to comply with applicable
requirements. See Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3). Complainant has
considered the facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to U.S. EPA’s 2003
RCRA Civil Penalty Policy. A copy of the penalty policy is available upon request. This policy

provides a consistent method of applying the statutory penalty factors to this case.

Compliance Order

99. Based on the foregoing, Respondents are hereby ordered, pursuant to authority
in 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) [40 C.E.R. § 22.37(b)] to comply with the following
requirements immediately upon the effective date of this Order:

a. Respondents shall comply with all applicable closure and post-closure
requirements in OAC §§ 3745-55-10 through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-
120] to the extent practicable given the current owner and operator of the Facility.
b. If all applicable closure and post-closure requirements in OAC §§ 3745-55-10
through 3745-55-20 [40 C.F.R. §§ 264.110-120] are complied with by
Respondents, as directed in paragraph 94.a, above, Respondents shall comply
with all applicable financial assurance requirements for closure in OAC 3745-55-

42 [40 C.F.R. § 264.142], and OAC § 3745-55-43 [40 C.F.R. § 264.143].
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100. Respondents shall not treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste without a
RCRA permit, except as provided for in paragraph 96 of this Order

101. Respondents shall achieve and maintain cémpliance with all required.
prohibitions governing the storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste applicable to
treatment, storage or disposal facilities, codified at or incorporated by OAC § 3745-54-01 to 101,
OAC § 3745-55-10 t0 99, OAC § 3745-56-20 to 56-83, OAC § 3745-57-02 to 93 and OAC §
3745-205-100 to 202 [40 C.F.R. Parts 264 and 265] by the effective date of this Order.

102. Respondents shall notify U.S. EPA in writing within 15 days of the effective
date of this Order either certifying compliance with the Order or explaining why they are not in
compliance and proposing a date to achieve compliance.

103. Respondents shall submit all reports, submissions, and notifications required by
this Order to the United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, Land and Chemicals
Division, RCRA Branch, Attention: Michael Beedle (LR-81T), 77 West Jackson Boulevard,
Chicago, Illinois 60604.

Rules Governing this Proceeding

The Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil
Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (the Consolidated Rules),

40 C.F.R. Part 22, govern this proceeding to assess a civil penalty. Enclosed with the Complaint
served on Respondents is a copy of the Consolidated Rules.

Filing and Service of Documents

Respondents must file with the U.S. EPA Regional Hearing Clerk the original and one
copy of each document Respondents intend as part of the record in this proceeding. The

Regional Hearing Clerk’s address is:
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Regional Hearing Clerk (E-197)
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

Respondents must serve a copy of each document filed in this proceeding on each party
pursuant to Section 22.5 of the Consolidated Rules. Complainant has authorized Catherine
Garypie, Associate Regional Counsel to receive any Answer and subsequent legal documents
that Respondents serve in this proceeding. You may telephone Catherine Garypie at (312) 886-

5825. Her address is:

Catherine Garypie, Associate Regional Counsel
Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Blvd. (C-14])

Chicago, IL 60604

Answer and Opportunity to Request a Hearing

If Respondents contest any material fact upon which the Complaint is based or the
appropriateness of any penalty amount, or contends that it is entitled to judgment as a matter of
law, Respondents may request a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge. To request a
hearing, Respondents must file a written Answer within 30 days of receiving this Complaint and
must include in that written Answer a request for a hearing. Any hearing will be conducted in
accordance with the Consolidated Rules.

In counting the 30-day period, the date of receipt is not counted, but Saturdays, Sundays,
and federal legal holidays are counted. If the 30-day time period expires on a Saturday, Sunday,
or federal legal holiday, the time period extends to the next business day.

To file an Answer, Respondents must file the original written Answer and one copy with

the Regional Hearing Clerk at the address specified above.
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Respondents’ written Answer must clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each of
the factual allegations in the Complaint; or must state clearly that Respondents have no
knowledge of a particular factual allegation. Where Respondents state that they have no
knowledge of a particular factual allegation, the allegation is deemed denied. Respondents’
failure to admit, deny, or explain any material factual allegation in the Complaint constitutes an
admission of the allegation.

Respondents’ Answer must also state:

a. the circumstances or arguments which Respondents allege constitute grounds of
defense;

b. the facts that Respondents dispute;
c. the basis for opposing the proposed penalty; and
d. whether Respondents request a hearing.

If Respondents do not file a written Answer within 30 calendar days after receiving this
Complaint, the Presiding Officer may issue a default order, after motion, under Section 22.17 of
the Consolidated Rules. Default by Respondents constitutes an admission of all factual
allegations in the Complaint and a waiver of the right to contest the factual allegations.
Respondents must pay any penalty assessed in a default order, without further proceedings,

30 days after the order becomes the final order of the Administrator of U.S. EPA under Section

22.27(c) of the Consolidated Rules.

Settlement Conference

Whether or not Respondents request a hearing, Respondents may request an informal
conference to discuss the facts alleged in the Complaint and to discuss settlement. To request an

informal settlement conference, Respondents may contact Michael Beedle at (312) 353-7922.
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Respondents’ request for an informal settlement conference will not extend the 30-day
period for filing a written Answer to this Complaint. Respondents may simultaneously pursue
both an informal settlement conference and the adjudicatory hearing process. Complainant
encourages all parties against whom it proposes to assess a civil penalty to pursue settlement
through an infdrmal conference. Complainant, however, will not reduce the penalty simply
because the parties hold an informal settlement conference.

Continuing Obligation to Comply

Payment of a civil penalty will not affect Respondents’ continuing obligation to comply

with RCRA and any other applicable federal, state or local law.

Date Margaret Guerriero
Director
Land and Chemicals Division
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ATTACHMENT A - “Penalty Summary Sheets”
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PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET
Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LLC
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 1 :
Requirement Violated: Storage and treatment of hazardous waste without a permit

| Penalty Amount for the Violation: $1,239:873027.236

Method of Calculation

1. Gravity based PENALLY ...c.cceiverreereeiiriesrerireeeseseereeressessesesresassersesssresseeressenesssaessensensesensns $30.100
1.1 Potential fOr RATIM ......ccoeiiieeiicieeieeerteee e ce e rre e rrae e sne s e s rneeseneesrnaaesrnneesmnnsssnne Major
e S (oo o (o LN D —— Major
1.3 Nttt coll point s cnnoseommsm s ammgseon s e o Sy s s e 64%

2. MUIE-AAY PENALLY . .veveereeeerieteieteeet e rteresteee e se s esessasesessassesesaesaessensesssneanaseesessansesessns $4.600

3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x (179) days) ...................$823.400

4. Add Iine 1 and HNE 3 ....ooiiiiiiiiiiieii ettt eis e be e s bbe e bbb et s e e s b s e e nasre e $853.500
5. Percent increase/decrease for g00d faith.....cc.ceecieireiiricreeieeecree e 0%
6. Poreent increase for-will il ness/ne gligene s cnmamsmmsranapassiimemssassesosmsimsiaisis 0%
7. Percent increase for history of noncomplianCe ...........coeveeemieineeienierenenenescrcssrseeseseeennas 5%
8, Percent reduciion for otherunique TRELOS. o e msssswasamimssamenssissismmiinesss s 0%
9. Total lines S through 8 ..o e e e e e ae e srne et e e s nraeas 5%
10 Miultiply Tines 4.1 Tine Bommmmmmmanmmssmisssms s i $42.675
| 11, ECONOMIC BEnefit.........o..ooeveeerceeensiieeseeneiscsesesies e eesssnenes $343.698131,061
| 12. Total lines 4, 10, and 11 for penalty amount ........c.cceerevveerererersneerieeernnes $1-239-8731.027.236




PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET

Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LLC
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 4
Requirement Violated: Personnel Training

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $74.498

Method of Calculation
1. Gravity based penally s s o momsmsesssmyse oo s e raes ssons $23.500
1.1 Potential fOr RATM ... ..ooiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ce e eenee e e sse e ees e e sesseeseseesranassrnneessanesssos Major
1.2 EXtEnt Of AeVIAtION .. .eveieieiiiiiieeeiceristt e esiase s eesarseessssansbeseesensssseaassnsenesssanesennnsanssans Moderate
1.3 NGO TBLLTIOMIL ... cosemeennasenmnmsmmnensa sams i il 5545 S R T S ARG SR RS SR R 64%
e g OO O R $3.650
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x (14events-1) .................. $47.450
BN [ B SR = B 1 s £ I PR OO PR $70.950
5. Percent increase/decrease for g0od faith.......ooeeieiveirieciieinee e 0%
b. Percent imerease Tor WillROness/ iR IBETICN ..o sessssmsimsissssisn sy s ipas s s <oassassomm s o 0%
7. Percent increase for histor_y Of NONCOMPIIANCE ...ttt 5%
8. Percent reduction For Other UNIGUE TABROTS . ...rrsnessseesrnssnssessisosshssasssssis s sie sinss s snsessismmaneine 0%
Q. Total Tnes 5 TIPouEh & .. csmewressmsmmimsesensnesss somsssse s s erss s esmss s sy s s s 5%
10. Multiply 1ines 4 By 1IN 9 ..ottt s es e sas s saan e $3.548
11, ECONOMIC BONETIE e eeeieeeeereeeereeeee e et ee e te et e eee st e ssesssbsseasssssessbeessrbsassrssensssesessesennaserasaesnnnnes $0
12. Total lines 4, 10, and 11 for penalty amount .........cceeverveecieeeieniienre s sesaeenes $74.498



PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET
Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LL.C
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA ID: OHR000127910

COUNT 8
Requirement Violated: Financial Assurance

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $441,004

Method of Calculation
1 Graviiy based pemally s s e $12.800
1.1 Potential fOr BAIML ..ocvveer ittt e e s s s e Moderate
1.2 EXtent Of deViation . ....cccieeieiieiieererier s ssee s esns e ssessnnesesneessneesaesan s esasessaesanes Major
1.3 MAtriX CeIl POIML....eiuiieiirieecieieesi ettt n e s s s sas e enas 64%
M L i S VOO OO R— $2.000
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of days of violations minus 1 (x 179 days) .....ccccccevvinuene $358.000
L e R 1 (e (1 T e T————— $370.800
5. Percent increase/decrease for good faith.. ... 0%
6. Percent increase for willfulness/megligence. .......coveerrereriieninninenerecee e 0%
7. Percent increase for history af noncempliance ... s 5%
8. Percent reduction for other unique fACtOTS .. cciieeiiieeiet et 0%
0. Total litwss3 thrommh B o smmvesempmss e s s i o s s s s s sas 5%
10. Multiply NeS 4 BY HNE 9 vt eeene e et es oo e ne e ene e $18.540
1. Bomimiie: Bsielil ..o s mmims i s s sy s e i s S i s $51.664
12. Total lines 4, 10, and 11 for penalty amount ..........cccccieererisiecenineioesissesseeseessssseereesens $441.004



Company Name: Carbon Injection Systems LLC
Address: Gate #4 Blast Furnace Main Avenue, Warren Township, OH
USEPA 1D: OHR000127910

COUNT 10
Requirement Violated: Land Disposal Restriction Notification

Penalty Amount for the Violation: $36,435

Method of Calculation
1. Gravity based Penalty .........ccoeerimereeinieeer e s s $30.100
1.1 POTEOTIA] T8 TN 1neo vammmmnnstosios siessiss b ams i s s e S e R TS Major
1.2 Exdert of deviation s st s se e Major
B\ ol | B oo A R ——— 64%
2. MUlti-AaY PENALLY ....oecviierereerierereeseseserseeessensssessssesassesessenssesassassessesesesnesesesssnssesasnesasasssencns $4.600
3. Line 2 multiplied by number of events of violations minus 1 (x (Zevehts-l) .................... $4.600
4. AAAUNE 1T AN LINE 3 rivreiiieee e eecee et et ete st e e e e es e e reeseesbennemnesannsens $34.,700
5. Percent merease/decreass for gt Talth .o s nim s s g 0%
6. Percent increase: for willfulness/negligence ..comwuesmsresen e 0%
7. Percent increase for history of NONCOMPLANCE.......ceerruierrerererieerirrererrnrese s esiesesssaesssessanens 5%
8. Percent reduction for other unigue FACTOIS . oumusmmvumsmnmsnmsiemisssmmmsrssivssssvisisss 0%
9. Total lines 5 through 8 ........coveiiiiieieieee ettt 5%
10, Multiply Hees B B 108 D cusnimmmmmmsin e mseissss s oo e s e o a o $1.735
11. EcOnomic Benefil. ...cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiciereesineesieeeescseeessaeeessseeessseesssseessssesssasensnneesansneessaneassssasosne $0
12, 'Total livies-d, 10, aird 11 T0F enaliyr @OOUNE wsmssms s s omimm smmas st $36.435

GRAND TOTAL ALL PENALTIES: $1,791,810579,173




In the Matter of Carbon Injection Systems LLC, Scott Forster, and Eric Lofquist
Docket No. RCRA-05-2011-0009

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that the foregoing “Complainant’s Motion for Leave to File the Second Amended
Complaint” dated June § , 2012, was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees
listed below:

Original and one copy hand-delivered to:

Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604

Copy via overnight mail to:

Attorneys for Respondents:

Carbon Injection Systems LLC, Scott Forster, Eric Lofquist
c/o Lawrence W. Falbe

Quarles & Brady LLP

300 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 4000
Chicago, IL 60654

Carbon Injection Systems LI.C, Scott Forster, Eric Lofquist
c/o Keven D. Eiber
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Brouse McDowell by S
600 Superior Avenue East = Q‘;r
Suite 1600 . A ;rn{'_‘; J
Cleveland, OH 44114 mBm
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Presiding Judge: 2 ol
- 35
The Honorable Susan L. Biro, Chief Administrative Law Judge -
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Office of Administrative Law Judges
Franklin Court, Suite 350
1099 14th St. NW

Washington, DC 20005
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Date Charles Rodrigue



